## Minutes of the Meeting of the LICENSING HEARING PANEL held on 17 July 2018

## PRESENT -

Councillor Rob Geleit (Chairman); Councillors Steve Bridger and David Reeve

<u>In Attendance:</u> Alexander Dean (representing residents of Chalk Lane), Sam Ogle (The Amato), Deborah Ross (The Amato) and Stephen Thomas (The Amato)

Officers present: Rachel Jackson (Licensing, Grants and HIA Manager), Louise Mathie (Solicitor), Oliver Nelson (Environmental Health Team Leader), Angela Slaughter (Licensing Officer), Lisa Rasores (Assistant Licensing Officer), Alex Awoyomi (Legal Intern), Sandra Dessent (Democratic Services Officer) and Tim Richardson (Democratic Services Officer)

- 1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST No declarations of interest were made by councillors in items on this agenda.
- 2 THE GRUMPY MOLE AT THE AMATO

The Panel was requested to determine an application for the variation of a Premises Licence for the Grumpy Mole at the Amato, Chalk Lane, Epsom, Surrey, KT18 7AS under the Licensing Act 2003.

Three objections to the application had been received from local residents on the grounds of Public Nuisance. The objectors were unable to attend the hearing and had requested that Mr Alexander Dean represent them.

No representations had been received from any responsible authority.

A site visit to the premises had been held on the morning of 17 July 2018. This had been attended by the three members of the Hearings Panel, officers of the Council and representatives of the premises were present. The premises licence variation application was not discussed during the site visit.

The original application included recorded music and entertainment of similar descriptions. The applicant had subsequently amended their application to remove this element, as it was only intended to provide incidental background music, which was exempt from regulation. Notification of this amendment had been circulated to all parties prior to the hearing, as had supplementary representations received by the Licensing Authority.

A verbal representation was received by the Panel from the applicant. The applicant informed the Panel that the venue provided a food driven offering to

patrons, and set out its operating procedures. The Panel was also informed of the venues signs requesting patrons to leave quietly, its dispersal policy and arrangements with a local private hire firm for collection of patrons.

A verbal representation was also received by the Panel from the representative of the objectors. This supported their written representations, informing the Panel that properties neighbouring the premises were residential in nature and expressing a concern that extending the hours of the premises would lead to an increase in noise nuisance to residents. The representative also informed the Panel that visitors to the venue had created problems by travelling the wrong way down the one-way road system in the local area and that signs and markings informing of the no-entry arrangements were badly worn.

Following consideration of the written and verbal representations made, the Panel RESOLVED:

## For the prevention of public nuisance, to partially reject the application. The following elements of the application were granted:

- (1) Opening hours to be as follows: Sunday to Wednesday 12:00 to 23:00, Thursday 12:00 to midnight, Friday and Saturday 12:00 until 00:30.
- (2) Late night refreshment: Thursday 23:00 until midnight, Friday and Saturday 23:00 until 00:30.
- (3) Christmas Eve sale of alcohol an extra hour, late night refreshment and opening hours to include the hour plus 30 minutes drinking up time.
- (4) New Year's Eve sale of alcohol until 01:30 plus late night refreshment and opening hours for that time, plus 30 minutes drinking up time.

The following conditions to apply:

- (5) Last orders for service in the garden at 22:00 hours, with the garden closed and lights off at 22:30.
- (6) The provision of the signage offered by the applicant namely:
- a) Signage in the garden to be displayed advising patrons of the closing time of the garden and that no ball games are permitted in the garden; and
- b) Additional signage visual to patrons leaving the premises advising them to respect their neighbours and leave the premises quietly.

The Panel also requested officers of the Borough Council to report the defective road markings at the junction of Woodcote Road and Chalk Lane to Surrey County Council.

The meeting began at 2.00 pm and ended at 3.18 pm

COUNCILLOR ROB GELEIT (CHAIRMAN)